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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

The Directors of Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad (“the Bank™ or “HLIB™) have pleasure in presenting
their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Bank for the financial year
ended 30 June 2010,

Principal activities

The Bank is principally engaged in stock and securities broking, and investment banking business,

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are nominee services as disclosed in Note 11 to the
financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Financial results

The Group The Bank

R&000 RAM M
Met profit for the financial vear 13,354 13,363

Dividend
No dividend has been paid, declared or proposed by the Bank since the end of the previous financial year,

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the financial year ended 30 June
2010.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
(Incorporated in Malavsia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Business strategy for the current financial vear

The Bank's strategy is to focus to expand the range of investment banking products and 10 enable clients
access o other loreign capital markets,

Outlook and business plan for the coming financial year

The key focus for the coming financial vear is to strengthen and build on the existing stockbroking business
and 1o offer innovative investment banking solutions while leveraging on Hong Leong Group relationship.

Significant events during the financial year

Significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements.
Subsequent events after the financial year

Significant events subsequent to the balance sheet date are disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements.
Reserves and provisions

All material transfers 1o or from reserves and provisions during the financial year are disclosed in the
financial statements,

Directors

YBhg Tan Sri Date’ Seri Khalid Ahmad bin Sulaiman
Ms Lee Jim Leng { Appointed on 24 November 2009)

YBhg Tan Sri A. Razak bin Ramli

Mr Choong Yee How

Mr Martin Giles Manen {Appointed on 30 July 2009)

In accordance with Article 121 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, Mr Choong Yee How retires by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting ("AGM") and being eligible, offers himself for re-
election.

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank's Aricles of Association, Ms Lee Jim Leng retires at the
forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offers herself for re-election,

In accordance with Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965, Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Khalid Ahmad bin Sulaiman
retires at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Directors’ interests

No Director holding office at the end of the financial year had any beneficial interest in the ordinary
shares/warrants/options/irredeemable convertible unsecured loan stocks of the Company andfor related
corporations during the financial year ended 30 June 2010 as recorded in the Register of Directors’
Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1953, except for YBhg Tan
Sri Dato' Seri Khalid Ahmad bin Sulaiman and Mr Choong Yee How whose beneficial interests are disclosed
in the Directors' Report of the immediate holding company as provided for under Section 134 of the said
Act.

Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Bank has received or become entitled to
receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and
receivable by certain Directors as shown in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a fulltime
employes of the Bank or of related corporations) by reason of a contract made by the Bank or a related
corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which
the Director has a substantial financial interest who may be deemed 1o derive a benefit by vinue of thosc
transactions, contracts and agreements for the acquisition and/or disposal of stocks and shares, stocks in-
trade, products, parts, accessories, plants, chattels, fixtures, buildings, land and other properties or any
interest in any properties; and/or the provision of services including but not limited to project and sales
management and any other management and consultancy services; and/or the provision of construction
contracts, leases, tenancy, dealership and distributorship agreements; and/or the provision of treasury
functions, advances and the conduct of nommal trading, insurance, investment, stockbroking and/or other
businesses between the Bank or its related corporations and corporations is deemed to have interest.

There were no amangement during and at the end of the financial year which had the ebject of enabling the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank
or any other body corporate, other than the share options granted pursuant to the Executive Share Option
Scheme of Hong Leong Financial Group Berhad.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance

Introduction

The Bank adheres to the principles and minimum standards for sound corporate governance as set out in
Bank Megara Malaysia (“BNM")'s Guidelines on Corperate Governance for Licensed Institutions (Revised
BMM/GPT).

A Board of DMrectors
I The Board

The Board assumes responsibility for effective stewardship and control of the Bank and has established
terms of reference to assist in the discharge of this responsibility.

The role and responsibilities of the Board broadly cover formulation of corporate policies and strategies,
overseeing and evaluating the conduct of the Bank's businesses; identifying principal risks and ensuring
the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks; and reviewing and approving key
matters such as financial results, investments and divestments, acquisitions and disposals and major
capital expenditure.

The Board observes the Bank's Directors' Code of Ethics established by the Companies Commission of
Malaysia and BNM/GP7 Code of Ethics: Guidelines on Code of Conduct for Directors, Officers and
Employees in the Banking industry.

II Board Balance

The Board comprises four (3) directors of whom three (3) are independent non-executive directors.

The Board is of view that the current Board composition fairly reflects the investment of shareholders in
the Bank.

The Chairman ensures the smooth and effective functioning of the Board.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
(Incorporated in Malavsia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance {conlinued)

A

1LY

Board of Directors {continued)
Board Meetings

The Board met six (6) times during the financial year ended 30 June 2010 with timely notices of issues
to be discussed. Details of attendance of each director are as follow:

Total meeti aliende
Y'Bhg Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Khalid Ahmad

bin Sulaiman 66
Ms Lee Jim Leng (Appointed on 24 November 2009)* 4/4
YBhg Tan 5ri A. Razak bin Ramli 6/6
Mr Choong Yee How L3
Mr Martin Giles Manen { Appointed on 30 July 2009)* 5/5

* Fased on the number of mectings artended for the financind vear endid 30 June 2010 sincs appointment.

Al the Board meetings, active deliberations of issues by Board members are encouraged and such
deliberations, decisions and conclusions are recorded by the Company Secretary sccordingly. Any
director who has an interest in the subject matter to be deliberated shall abstain from deliberation and
voting on the same during the meetings.

Supply of Information

All Board members are supplied with information on a timely manner. Board reports are circulated prior
to Board meetings and the reports provide, amongst others, financial and corporate information,
significant operational, financial and corporate issues, performance of the Bank and management's
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary as well as to independent
professional advice, including Internal Auditors.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no; 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)
A Board of Directors {continued)
¥ Board Committees
Board Aundit and Risk Management Committee (“BARMC™)

The financial reporting and internal control system of the Bank is overseen by the BARMC, which was
established on 14 December 2009 and the members are as follows:-

YBhg Tan Sri A. Razak bin Ramli {Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr Martin Giles Manen {Independent Mon-Executive Director)
Mr Choong Yee How {Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

The primary functions and responsibilities of the BARMC are set out in the terms of reference as
follows:-

{a) To nominate and recommend for the approval of the Board, a person or persons as external
auditors).

{b) To review the external audit fees.
(¢} To review, with the external auditors, the audit scope and plan,

(d} To review, with the external auditors, the audit report and audit findings and the management’s
response thereto.

(&) To assess objectivity, performance and independence of external auditors,
(f) To consider the provision of non-audit services by the external auditors.

{g) To ensure that there are proper checks and balances in place so that the provisien of non-audit
services does not interfere with the exercise of independent judgment of the extemal auditors.

(h) To ensure that the accounts are prepared in a timely and accurate manner with frequent reviews of
the adeguacy of provisions against contingencies and bad and doubtful debts.

(i) To review the assistance given by the officers of the Bank and its subsidiaries (“the Group") to the
external auditors,

(i) Toengage en a continuous basis with senior management, such as the chairman, the chief executive
officer, the finance director, the head of intemal audit and the external auditors in order to be kept
informed of matters affecting the Bank.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{ Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance {continued)
A Board of Directors (continued )
¥V Board Committees {continued)
Board Audit and Risk Management Committee (* BARMC™) {continued)

The primary functions and responsibilities of the BARMC are set out in the terms of reference as follows
{continued):-

(k} To review the quarterly reports and annual financial statements of the Bank and of the Group prior to
the approval by the Board,

(11 Toreview the adequacy of the internal audit scope and plan, functions, competency and resources of
the Internal Audit Department.

{(m) To review the report and findings of the Intemal Audit Department including any findings of internal
investigations and the management’s response thereto.

(n} To review any related party transactions that may arise within the Bank or the Group.

(o} To verify the allocation of options under the Employees’ Share Options Scheme al the end of each
financial vear,

{p) To review and report to the Board measures taken to:-.

{1} identify and examine principal risks faced by the Bank;
{ii) implement appropriate systems and internal controls 1o manage these risks.

{q)} To evaluate and recommend to the Board, risk management policies, strategies and risk tolerance
proposed by management.

(r) Review periodic reports on risk exposure, risk portfolio composition and risk management activities.
(s} To review the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and risk management process.
() To obtain independent legal or other professional advice as it considers necessary.

(u) Other functions as might be agreed to by the BARMC and the Board.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 435326-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors” report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)
A Board of Directors (continued)
¥V  Board Committees (continued)
Board Audit and Risk Management Committee (*BARMC") (continued)

During the financial year ended 30 June 2010, two (2) BARMC meetings were held and the attendance
of the members was as follows:-

Total meetings attende

YBhg Tan Sri A. Razak bin Ramli 212
Mr Martin Giles Manen 212
Mr Choong Yee How 212

The Group Chief Internal Auditor reports directly to the BARMC and provides the BARMC and
management with an independent assessment of the adequacy of risk management practice. Significant
breaches and deficiencies identified are discussed with the BARMC and remedial actions taken by
management are reported to and monitored by the BARMC.

Nominating and Remuneration Committee ("NRC")

The MRC was established on 14 December 2009 and the members are as follows:-

YBhg Tan 5r Dato' Seri Khalid Ahmad

bin Sulaiman {Chairman, Independent Non-Exacutive Director)
YBhg Tan Sri A. Razak bin Ramli {Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr Martin Giles Manen {Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr Choong Yee How (MNon-Independent Non-Executive Director)

The primary functions and responsibilities of the NRC are set out in the terms of reference as follows:
Nominating Functions

ia) Responsible for the nomination related matters of the Board of the Bank. The NRC assists the Board
of the Bank in formulating and developing remuneration packages of Directors, Chief Executive
Officers (“CEO™) and key senior management staff as well as Board and Committes appointments
through the periodical review of the relevant mix of skills and experiences inherent in the respective
Boards.

{b) Establishing the minimum requirements for the Board of the Bank namely required mix of skills,
experience, qualification and other core competencies required of a director. The NRC is also
responsible for establishing the minimum requirements for the CEO. The requirements and criteria
should be approved by the full Board.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)

A Board of Directors {continued)

V  Board Committees {continued)

Nominating and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") {continued)

Nominating Functions {continued)

3]

Recommending and assessing the nominces for directorship, board committee members as well as
nominees for the CEQ and ensuring compliance with Section 56 of the Banking and Financial
Institutions Act 1989, This includes assessing directors for reappointment, before an application for
approval is submitted to Bank Negara Malaysia. The actual decision as to who shall be nominated
ghould be the responsibility of the full Board.

(d) Overseeing the overall composition of the Board and Board Committees, in terms of the appropriate

ie)

(f)

(e)

{h)

(i)

()

size and skills, and the balance between executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent directors through annual review.

Recommending to the Board the removal of a Director/CEQ/key senior management officer from the
Board/management if the Director/CEQVkey senior management officer is incffective, errant and
negligent in discharging his responsibilities.

Establishing & mechanism for the formal assessment on the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution of each Director 1o the effectiveness of the Board, the contribution of the
Board’s various commitices and the performance of the CEQ and other key senior management
officers. Annual assessment should be conducted based on an objective performance criterion. Such
performance criteria should be approved by the full Board.

Ensuring that all directors receive an appropriate continuous training program in order 10 keep
abreast with the latest developments in the industry,

Owerseeing the appointment, management succession planning and performance evaluation of key
senior management officers.

Assessing, on an annual basis, to ensure that the Directors and key senior management officers are
not disqualified under section 56 of the Banking and Financial Institutions Act 1989,

The nemination role of the NRC should net be delegated with decision-making powers but should
report to the full Board for decision.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no; 43526-
{ Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial vear ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance {continued)

A Board of Directors (continued)

¥  Board Committees (continued)

Y1

Nominating and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") {continued)

Eemuneration Funetions

(a)

(b}

Recommending a framework of remuneration for Directors, CEQ and key senior management
officers for the full Board's approval. The remuneration framewaork should support the Group
culture, objectives and strategy and should reflect the responsibility and commitment, which goes
with board membership and responsibilities of the CEO and senior management officers. There
should be balance in determining the remuneration package, which should be sufficient to attract and
retain directors of caliber, and vet not excessive to the extent of licensed institution’s funds are used
to subsidise the excessive remuneration packages. The framework should cover all aspects of
remuneration including director’s fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-kind.

Recommending specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors and the CEO. The
remuneration package should be structured such that it is competitive and consistent with the Group
culture, objectives and strategy. Salary scales drawn up should be within the scope of the general
business policy and not be dependent on short-term performance to avoid incentives for excessive
risk-taking. As for non-executive directors and independent directors, the level of remuneration
should be linked to their level of responsibilities undertaken and contribution to the effective
functioning of the board. In addition, the remuneration of cach board member may differ based on
their level of expertise, knowledge and experience.

There was no NRC meeting held during the financial year ended 30 June 2010.

Procedure In Reviewing Remuneration

The NRC, in assessing and reviewing the remuneration packages of executive directors, shall ensure that
u strong link is maintained between their rewards and individual performance, based on the provisions in
the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which are reviewed from time to time to align with
market/industry practices.

The fees of directors, including Non-Executive directors, shall be recommended and endorsed by the
Board for approval by the shareholders of the Bank at its Annual General Meeting.

Re-election

All Directors are required to submit themselves for re-election every three years,

[



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)

111

Accountability and Audit

The Board is supported by the Internal Audit Department whose principal responsibility is o conduct
periodic audits on the internal control matters to ensure compliance with systems and/or standard
operating procedures of the Bank. Investigation will be made at the request of the Board and senior
management on specific areas of concern when necessary. Significant breaches and deficiencics
identified are discussed at the Board meetings where appropriate actions will be taken.

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for ensuring the proper maintenance of accounting records of the Bank. The
Board receives the recommendation to adopt the financial statements which assesses the financial
statements with the assistance of the external auditors,

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a system of internal controls which covers financial
and operational controls and risk management. This system provides reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatements, losses and fraud.

Relationship with Auditors

The appointment of external auditors is recommended 1o the Board, which determines the remuneration
of the external auditors. The external auditors meet with the Board to

= present the scope of the audit before the commencement of audit; and
»  review the results of the audit as well as the management letter after the conclusion of the audit.

Rizk Management

(herview

The risk management functions of the Bank are undertaken by its immediate holding company, HLG
Capital Berhad under its established risk management framework. Operationally, the Heads of divisions
in the Bank assess and analvse the key areas of risks i_e. credit, market, liquidity and operational risks.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)

C

n

Risk Management {continued)
Owerall Risk Management Framework

The Board oversses the implementation of the risk management framework of the Bank. In discharging
this responsibility, the Board ensures that the Bank has in place their respective risk management
framework for management of significant risks within broadly similar parameters. The Board provides
oversight on the proper functioning of risk menagement framework of the Bank by undertaking periodic
review of their risk management processes to the extend permissible under the regulatory framework of
the Bank and is also given assurance at these reviews on the adequacy and integrity of the system of
internal controls, In discharging this oversight role, the Board is assisted by the Group Internal Audit
Department, the Bank's Compliance Officer and the Head of Finance,

The controls built into the risk management framework are not expected to eliminate all risks of failure to
achieve business objectives but to provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against financial losses and fraud. Refer to
Note 38 for further details.

Share capital

On 22 March 2010, approval was granted by BNM on the issuance of 142,035,171 new ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each ("Shares") by capitalising the Bank's share premium reserve.

On 30 March 2010, the Bank issued 142,035,171 Shares to HLG Capital Berhad by capitalising a sum of
RM142.035,171 being the entire amount standing in the Bank's share premium reserve,

The Shares issued during the vear ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Bank.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Statutory information regarding the Group and the Bank

(a) As at the end of the financial year

(1} Before the income statements and balance sheets of the Group and the Bank were made out, the
Directors ok reasonable steps:

* to ascertzin that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the

making of allowance for doubtful debts and had satisfied themselves that all known bad debis had
been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise their book values
in the ordinary course of business had been written down to their estimated realisable values.

(b} From the end of the financial year to the date of this report

(i) The Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtfial
debts inadequate to any material extent;

which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements misleading;
and

which had arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and the Bank misleading or inappropriate.

(11} In the opinion of the Directors:

* the results of the operations of the Group and the Bank for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 are

not likely 10 be substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature which had arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this

report; and

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable, within
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of
the Group and the Bank to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Directors’ report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Statutory information regarding the Group and the Bank (continued)

(€] As al the date of this report

{i} There are no charges on the assets of the Group and the Bank which had arisen since the end of the
financial year to secure the liabilities of any other person.

{1} There are no contingent liabilities which had arisen since the end of the financial year.

{iii) The Directors are not aware of any circumstances notl otherwise dealt with in the report or financial
statements which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

Holding and ultimate holding companies

The immediate helding and ultimate holding companies are HLG Capital Berhad and Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad respectively, both incorporated in Malaysia.

Auditors

The auditors, Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 30 July 2010

Tan Sri Dato” Seri Khalid Ahmad bin Sulaiman

..-"
i I."'H.
'. \ &
"'H-L_____/: -3
ll.':u.lim ng
4
_r
Kuala Lumpur

§ September 2010
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no; 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Balance sheets as at 30 June 2010

Assels
Cash and shori-term fumnds
Deposits and placements with banks
Securities held at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-miaturity securities
Loans and advances
Clients’ and brokers' balances
Oither receivables
Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia
Tax recoverable
Investment in subsidiary companias
Deferred tax assets
Prepaid lease payments
Property and equipment
Coodwill
Intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions

Cliemis” and brokers® balances

Payables and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Redsemable preference shares
Heserves

Total equity
Total equity and liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Note

Led B¥

C= - - R F U

11
12
13
14
15
{3

17

18
20

22
23
24

33

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 010 2009
RM"000 RM'000 RM'000 RAO00
Gl 553 239023 638,043 238,151
43,000 24 45,000 24
431,411 6,101 431,411 6. 101
245 245 245 245
10,000 - 10, DM -
117,926 82,339 117,926 §1,339
50,590 140,808 80,590 140,808
13,300 11,093 15,332 11,219
4,000 4,000 .
13 68 131 13
. - 558 588
51,597 58,192 51,597 58,192
1,131 1,132 1,131 1,132
5,296 4210 5296 4210
28,986 28,750 30236 30,000
1,22% 937 1229 437
1,452,395 572922 1,453,755 574,077
31.218 - 51,2158 -
600,990 9,820 600,990 9,820
223,440 252 568 122,317 252,434
309,122 36,263 310,376 36,332
1,164,770 208,651 1,164,901 298,586
265,535 123,500 165,535 123,500
1,631 1,631 1,631 1,631
20,459 149,140 21,688 150,360
187,615 274,271 188,854 375 491
1,452,305 572922 1,453,755 574,077
3,492,940 IZTATS 3491940 327475




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
Incorporated in Malaysia)

Income statements

for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

[nterest income

[mteTest expense
Met interest income

Mon=interest income

Crverhead expenses

Orperating profit bafore allowances

Allowance for{ Writeback of) losses on loans
and advances and ofher losses

Impairment of goodwil]

Profit/Loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation for the financial year

Earnings per share (sen)
- Basic / Fully diluted

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 o 2009
Mote RN (00 ALY R RM"000 EN'000
25 14,645 3414 14,645 2,705
26 (3,947) (194) (3,947} 194}
10,698 3,222 10,698 2311
2T 52310 23,303 35,096 21,836
s, (NE 26,525 65,704 24 347
78 (46,018)  (19908) (45,795  (16,358)
19,994 6,617 19,999 7,789
29 (1,041) 1,002 (1,041) 46
15 - (57,236) - (57.236)
13,949 (49,617) 18,058 (48,501)
3l {5,595) 57121 (5,595) 57,225
13,354 7.504 13,363 8,724
32 B4 238 5.4 21.7

I
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Consolidated cash flow statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

Maote

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit'{Loss) before taxation

Adjustments for

Impairment of goodwill

Deepreciation of property and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid leass paymenis

Amortisation of intangible assets

Gain on sale of property and equipment

Allowance for (writeback of) losses on clients’
and brokers” balunces

Allowance for losses on loans and advances

Unrealised gain on securities held at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest income from securities held at fair
value through profit or loss

Interest income from available-for-sale securities

Interest income from held-to-maturity securities

Dividend income

Dperating profit before working capital changes

i Increase)decrease in operating assets

Deposits and placements with banks

Securities held at fair value through profit or loss
Held-to-maturity securities

Loun and advances

Clients” and brokers” balances

Oither receivables

Statutory deposits with Bank Megara Malaysia
Increase/{decrease) in operating liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of other fingncial institutions
Clients" and brokers” balances

Payables and other liabilities

Cash generated from/{used in) operating activities
[ncome tax paid

Met cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

21

20140 2008
RM'000 RMWO00
18,940 {49.617)
- 57,236

1,666 e

1 1

632 186
(248) (T2
373 (1,179}
00 177

(1,448) (T18)

(2,603)

{2,328) v
(192) .
(635) (443)

{4,173) 55,877

14,776 6,260

(44,976) (24
(423,861) 19,994

(10,000) -

(36,296) (8,081}

63,597 {49.403)
1,358 (8.685)

EXC -

31,218 (603)

541,170 [37.9786)
{19,128) (99,927)
272,859 7.014
426,716 (171.429)

(63) (161}
426,653  (171,590)




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Consolidated cash flow statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Mote 2010 2005
RM 000 RMO00

Cush flows from investing activities

Acquisition of SBBS, net of cash acquired . (27,817
Acquisition of SIBB, net of cash acquired - (48,152)
Goodwill acquisttion arising from capitalisation

of merger costs (236) -
Proceeds from disposal of property

and equipment 260 113

Interest received from securities held at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale securities

and held-to-maturity securities 1,658 =
Dividends from securities portfolio 635 434
Met purchase of intangible assets (924) (528}
Purchase of property and equipment {2,764) (1,037}
Net cash used in investing activities (1,371} (T6,985)

Cash flows from financing activities

[ssuance of ordinary shares - 123,000
Wet cash generated from financing activities - 123,000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 425282 (125,573}
Cush and cash equivalents transferred from HLGS = 181,121
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 55,546 .
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial vear 480,828 335,546

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash and short term funds 2 660,553 239,023
Less: Remisiers' and clients’ trust monies (179,725)  (133477)
450,828 55,546

Il



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
iIncorporated in Malaysia)

Bank cash flow statements

for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit{Losz) before taxation
Adjustments for :
Impairment of goodwill
Diepreciation of property and equipmeni
Amaortisation of prepaid lease payments
Amartisation of intangible assets
Ciain on sale of property and eguipment
Allowance for/{(writcback of) losses on
clients” and brokers” balances
Allowance for losses on loans and advances
Unrealised gain on securities held at fair valoe
through profit or loss
Intersst income from securities held at fair
value through profit or loss
Interest income from available-for-sale securities
Imterest income from held-to-maturity securities
Dividend income

Operating profit before working capital

changes

{Increaseydecrease in operating assets

Deposits and placements with banks

Securities held at fair value through profit or loss
Held-to-maturity securities

Loan and advances

Clients" and brokers" balances

Other receivables

Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia
Increasefidecrease) in operating liabilities

Dieposit from customers

Deposits and placements of other financial institutions
Clients” and brokers” balances

Payables and other linbilities

Cash generated from/{used in) operating activities
Income tax paid

Met cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

2010 2009
RA (00 FLADD0
18,958 (48,501}
. 57,236
1,fi6d 01
1 |
632 186
(248) (72
373 (1,179)
09 21
(1,448) (718
(2,603) -
{2,318)
(292) #
{635) (445)
{4,173) 25 843
14,785 7342
{44.976) (24)
(423,862) 19,996
{10,04040) :
{36,296) (3,13
63,597 (32,438)
{348) {8,724}
{4,000y F
31,218 {603)
591,170 (37,976)
(3,117) (108, 988)
274,044 12,779
425015  (156,773)
- (120}
425,015 {156,893)




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Bank cash flow statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

Maote 2010 2003
LW " (e RN
Cash flows from investing activifies

Acquisition of SBBS, net of cash acquired - (44,078}
Acquisition of SIBB, net of cash acquired - (48,152)
Goodwill arising from capitalization of

METZET COsts (136) -
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 1ol 115

Interest received from securities held st Dair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale securities

and held-to-maturity securities 1,658 -
Dividends from securities portfolio 635 434
Met purchase of intangible assets (924) (528)
Purchase of property and equipment {2,764) (451}
Met cash used in investing aetivities (1,371} {92,658)

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of ordinary shares - 123,000
Net cash generated from financing activitics - 123,000
Met inerease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 423,644 (126,551)
Cash and cash equivalents transferred from HLGS - 181,121
Cash and cush equivalents at beginning of year 54,674 104
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial vear 478,318 34,674

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise:
Cash and short term funds 2 655,043 238,151
Less: Remisiers' and clients' trust monies (179,725) (183477

478,318 54,674

24



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

All significant accounting policies set out below have been used consistently in dealing with items
which are considered material in relation to the financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the financial years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements of the Group and the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board (“MASB") Approved Accounting $tandards in Malaysia for Entities Cther
Than Private Entities, Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM™) Guidelines and comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 19635,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Financial Reporting Standards requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assetz and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. It also requires Directors 1o
exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group's and the Bank's accounting policies.
Although these estimates and judgement are based on the management and Directors’ best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results may differ.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or arcas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 39,

(i) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that
are applicable to the Group and the Bank and are effective.

The are no new accounting standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to
existing standards that are applicable and effective for the Group and the Bank for the financial year
ended 30 June 20100.

(i) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that
are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not vet effective and have not been early
adopted.

The Group and the Bank will apply the following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations from financial period beginning 1 July 2010 or later periods.

IC Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment (effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after | January 2010) prohibits the impairment losses recognised in an interim period
on goodwill and investments in equity instruments and in financial asscts carried at cost 1o be
reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. The adoption of IC Interpretation 10 does not have any
significant financial impact on the results of the Group and the Bank.
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial vear ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

A

(i)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements {continued)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that

are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not vet effective and have not been early adopted
[continued),

Amendments to FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statement (effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010) separates owner and non-owner changes in equity and
introduces the statement of comprehensive income. All non-owner changes in equity will be reguired
to be shown in a performance statement, but entities can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income). Where entities restate or reclassify comparative information,
they will be required to present a restated balance sheet as at the beginning comparative period in
addition 1o the current requirement to present balance sheets at the end of the current period and
comparative period. The adoption of FRS 101 will require additional disclosure requirements for the
Group's and the Bank's financial statements.

Amendments to FRS 1 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards and FRS 127 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010) allows first-time
adopters to use a deemed cost of either fair value or the carrying amount under previous accounting
practice to measure the initial cost of investments in subsidiaries, jointly comtrolled entities and
associates in the separate financial statements. The amendment also removes the definition of the cost
method and requires investors to present dividends as income in the separate financial statements. The
amendments do not have any significant financial impact on the results of the Group and the Bank.

FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after | January 2010) establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy and sell non-financial items. Hedge accounting
is permitted only under strict circumstances. The improvement to FRS 139 clarifies that the scope
exemption in FRS139 only applies to forward contracts but not options for business combination that
are firmly committed to being completed within a reasonable timeframe. BNM has on & January 2010
issued the revised BNM Garis Panduan ("GP3™) — “Classification and Impairment Provisions for
Loans/Financing”, which sets owt the minimum requirements on the classifications of impaired
loans/financing and allowances for loan/financing impairment effective for annual accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2010, The guideline also prescribes the use of an alternative basis for
collective assessment of impairment for a transitional period for purpose of complying with the
collective assessment of impairment requirement in FRS 139. The Group and the Bank will apply
this standard and BNM GP? when effective. Nevertheless, the accounting policies of the Group and
the Bank incorporate requirements of the Revised Guidelines on Financial Reporting for Licensed
Institutions MBNM/GPE" which includes selected principles of FRS 139,
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

A

(i)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that
are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not yet effective and have not been early adopted
{continued).

IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives (effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010) requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as & derivative when the entity first
becomes a party to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is prohibited unless there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required
under the contract, in which case reassessment is required, The improvement to IC Interpretation 9
{effective from 1 July 2010) clarifies that this interpretation does not apply 1o embedded dervatives
in contracts acquired in a business combination, businesses under common control or the formation
of a joint venture.

FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after |
January 2010) replaces the disclosures requirements currently in FRS 132 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures and Presentation. FRS 7 requires disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information
about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including minimum disclosures about
credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The improvement to FRS 7 clarifies that entities must not
present total interest income and expense as a net amount within finance costs on the face of the
income statement.

In respect of FRS 119, Improvement to FRS 139, IC Interpretation 3, FRS 7 and Improvement to FRS 7,
the Group and the Bank have applied the transitional provision in the respective standards which exempts
the Group and the Bank from disclosing the possible impact arising from the initial application of the
standard and interpretation on the Group's and the Bank's financial statements.

7



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

A

(i

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Standards, amendments 1o published standards and interpretations to existing standards that
are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not vet effective and have not been early adopted
{continued).

Revised FRS 3 Business Combination (effective prospectively from 1 July 2010) continues to apply
the acquisition method to business combinations, with some significant changes. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with
contingent payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the income statement.
There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be expensed. The adoption of the revised FRS 3 does
not have any significant financial impact on the results of the Group and the Bank.

FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective prospectively from 1 July 2010)
requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there
is no change in control and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses,
The standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is
re-measured o fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. The adoption of FRS 127
does not have any significant financial impact on the results of the Group and the Bank.

Improvement to existing MASB's standards (effective for accounting periods beginning on or afler 1
January 20007 are az follows:

»  FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Improvement (effective
from | January 2010) clarifies that FRS 5 disclosures apply to non-current assets or and
discontinued operations. Improvement effective from 1 July 2010 clarifies that all of a
subsidiary'’s assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if a partial disposal sale plan
results in loss of control. Relevam disclosure should be made for this subsidiary if the definition
of a discontinued operation is met.

=  FRS 107 Statement of Cash Flows {effective from 1 January 2010) clarifies that only
expenditure resulting in a recognised assel can be cateporised as a cash flow from investing
activities.

* FRS 110 Events afler the Balance Sheet Date (effective from 1 January 2010) reinforces
existing guidance that a dividend declared afier the reporting date is not a liability of an entity at
that date given that there is no obligation at that time.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial vear ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

A

(i}

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards that
are applicable to the Group and the Bank but not yet effective and have not been early adopied
{continued).

Improvement to existing MASB's standards (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010) are as follows (continued):

«  FRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective from 1 January 2010) requires entities whose
ordinary activities comprise of renting and subsequently selling assets to present proceeds from
the sale of those assets as revenue and should transfer the carrying amount of the asset to
mventories when the asset becomes held for sale. A consequential amendment 1o FRS 107
states that cash flows arising from purchase, rental and sale of those assets are classified as cash
flows from operating activities.

«  FRS 117 Leases {effective from 1 January 2010) clarifies that the default classification of the
land element in a land and building lease is no longer an operating lease. As a result, leases of
land should be classified as either finance or operating, using the general principles of FRS 117,

. FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective from | January 2010)
clarifies that where an investment in a subsidiary that is accounted for under FRS 139 is
classified as held for sale under FRS 5, FRS 139 would continue to be applied.

«  FRS 134 Interim Financial Reporting (effective from | January 2010) clarifies that basic and
diluted eamings per share (“EPS™) must be presented in an interim report only in the case when
the entity is required to disclose EPS in its annual report.

« FRS 136 Impairment of Assets (effective from 1 January 2010) clarifies that the largest cash-
generating unit {or group of units) to which goodwill should be allocated for the purposes of
impairment testing is an operating segment before the aggregation of segments with similar
economic characieristics. The improvement also clarifies that where fair value less costs to sell
is calculated on the basis of discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent 1o those for value in
use should be made.

The adoption of the above revised MASB accounting standards is not expected to have any
significant financial impact on the results of the Group and the Bank.
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

B Economic entities in the Group
(i} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Bank has the power 1o exercise control over the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities, generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than half of the voting rights,

Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Where there is an
indication of impairment, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed, A write down is made if the
carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries
made up 10 the end of the financial year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred o the Group and de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases, Subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method of
gecounting, except for business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control with
agreement dates on/afler | January 2006 which were accounted for using merger accounting principles.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
vear are included from the date of acquisition up to the date of dispesal. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irmespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition is reflected as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income slatement.

Under the merger method of accounting, the results of subsidiaries are presented as if the merger had been
effected throughout the current and previous years. The assets and liabilities combined are accounted for
based on the carrving amounts from the perspective of the common control shareholder at the date of
transfer. On consolidation, the cost of the merger is cancelled with the values of the shares received. Any
resulting credit difference is classified as equity and regarded as a non-distributable reserve. Any resulting
debit difference is adjusted against any suitable reserve. Any share premium, capital redemption reserve
and any other reserves which are attributable to share capital of the merged enterprises, to the extent that
they have been capitalised by a debit difference, are reclassified and presented as movement in other
capital reserves, Under this method, the comparatives are not restated for the presentation in the financial
statements.

3n



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

B  Economic entities in the Group (continued)
(i) Subsidiaries (continuad)

All material transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated and the consolidated
financial statements reflect external transactions only. Where necessary, accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed 10 ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary is the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
Group's share of its net assets together with the carrying amount of the goodwill as of the date of disposal,
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

C  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries over the Group's share of net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contigent liabilities of subsidiaries at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrving amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-generating units (“CGU™) for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those OGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination in which the goodwill arose, Refer to MNote P on impairment of non-financial assets,

D Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses (if any). Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated to write off the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over the estimated usaful lives, summarised as follows:

Leasehold buildings Cver the rempining period of the lease or 3 years

whichever |2 shorter
Oifice and computer squipment 2ty - 33%
Furnituse and fittings 0%
Renovations Pl
Molor vehicles il

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

Y|



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

D  Property and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. Refer to Note P on impairment on non-financial assets,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are
included in other operating income,

E Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise of computer software, Intangible assets are initially recognised when they are
separable or arise from contractual or other legal rights, the cost can be measured reliably and, in the case
of intangible assets not acquired in 2 business combination, where it is probable that future cconomic
benefits attributable to the assets will flow from their use. Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or are not vet ready for use, are tested for impairment
annually. This impairment test may be performed at any time during the year, provided it is performed at
the same time every year. An intangible asset recognised during the current period is tested before the end
of the current year.

Intangible assets that have a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses and are amortised over their estimated useful lives.

Computer software are amortised over their finite useful lives of 3 years.
F  Leases

Where the Group and the Bank is the lessee

Lease of property and equipment where the Group and the Bank assumes substantially all the benefits and
tisks of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the lower of fair value of the lease assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and the finance charge. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings. The interest element of the finance charge
is charged to the income statement over the lease period. Property and equipment acquired under finance
lease are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the assets.

Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor

are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating |cases are charged 10 income statement
over the lease period.
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
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F  Leases (continued)

Where the Group and the Bank is the lessee (continued)

Where the operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be
made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period when termination takes
place.

Leasehold land that normally has an indefinite economic life and title is not expected 1o pass (o the lessee
by the end of the lease term is treated as an operating lease. The payment made on entering into or
acquiring a leasehold land is accounted as prepaid lease payments that are amortised over the lease term
in accordance with the pattern of benefits provided.

G Securities portfolio

The Group and the Bank classify their securities portfolio into the following categories; securities held at
fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities. Management
determines the classifications of its securities up-front at the poini when transactions are entered into.

(i)  Securities held at fair value through profit or loss

Securities held at fair value through profit or loss comprise of securities held-for-trading ("HFT™) and
securities other than those held-for-trading but valued at fair value through profit or loss,

Held-for-trading securifies

Held-for-trading securities (“HFT™) are securities that are acquired and held principally for the purpase of
selling in the short term.

Securiries other than held-for-trading designated ai fair value
Securities are classified as such if this eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency (sometimes referred to as ‘an accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases,
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G Securities portfolio (continued)
(i)  Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative instruments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group's and the Bank's management has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group and the Bank sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity securities,
the entire category will be 1ainted and reclassified as available-for-sale securities,

(lii) Awvailable-for-sale securitics

Available-for-sale securities are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
s0ld in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Securities are initially recognised at fair value. Securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the securities have expired or where the Group and the Bank has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Securities held at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale securities are subsequently carried
at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the securities held for trading
category are included in the income statement in the period which they arise. Gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value of available-for-sale securities are recognised directly in equity, until the
sccurities are derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative gains or loss previously recognised in
equity are recognised in the income statement. Invesiments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost.

Held-to-maturity securities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains or losses arising from the derecognition or impairment of the securities are recognised in
the income statement.

Interest from securities held at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale securities and held-to-
maturity securities is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income
statemnent. Dividends from available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
when the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted securities are based on quoted prices in active markets. If the market for an

instrument is not active (and for unquoted securities), the Group and the Bank establish fair value by using
valuation techniques.
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H Receivables

Clients’ and brokers’ balances arising from share and stock broking business are carried at cost, net of
allowance for bad and doubtful debts (anticipated realisable values).

Other receivables are carried at cost, net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts {anticipated realisable
values). An estimate is made for allowance for bad and doubtful debts based on the review of all
outstanding amounts at the end of the financial year. Bad debts are written off during the financial year in
which they are identified.

| Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair values on the date on which derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair values. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair values arc positive and as liabilities when fair values are
negative. Changes in the fair value of any derivatives that do not quality for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without
modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique which variables include only data from
observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Bank recognises profits immediately.

35



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

J  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash and short terms funds held for the purpose of meeting short term
commitments and readily convertible into cash without significant risk of changes in value, net of monies
held in trust for clients and remisiers.

K Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle the
obligations, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

L.  Income taxes

Current tax expense is determined according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Group and
the Bank operates and includes all taxes based upon the laxable profits.

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial stalements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction afTects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled by the Group and 1t 1s
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities, which are
charged or credited directly to equity, is alse credited or charged directly to equity and is subseguently
recognised in the income statement together with the deferred gain or loss,

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially

enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised
or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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M Recognition of interest income
(i) Recognition of interest income from loans and advances

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, Interest income on term loan is recognised by reference
to rest periods which are either daily, monthly or yearly.

Where an account is classified as non-performing, interest accrued and recognised as income prior to the
date the loans are classified as non-performing are reversed out of income and set-off against the accrued
interest receivable amount in the balance sheet. Subsequently, interest eamed on non-performing loan is
recognised as interest income on cash basis instead of being accrued and suspended at the same time as
prescribed previously,

Customers’ accounts are classified as non-performing where repayments are in arrears for 3 months or
more from the first day of default.

The Group's and the Bank’s policy on suspension of interest income is generally more stringent than
BNM's “Guidelines on the Classification of Nen-Performing Loans and Provision for Substandard Bad
and Doubtful Debts™ (“BNM/GP3™).

{ii} Recogaition of other interest income

Interest income from margin financing, clients” overdue outstanding purchases and contra losses are
recognised on an accrual basis, Where an account is classified as non-performing, interest is credited to
the interest-in-suspense account and shall be reversed when realised on a cash basis; except for margin
accounts where interest is suspended until the account is reclassified as performing. The suspension of
interest income of the stockbroking business is made in accordance with the guidelines of Bursa Malaysia
Securitics Berhad.
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N Recognition of fees and other income

Loan arrangement fees and commissions are recognised as income when all conditions precedent are
fulfilled. Commitment fees and puarantee fees which are material are recognised as income based on time

apportionment., Service charges and other fee income are recognised as income when the services are
rendered.

Dividends from securities held at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale securities, held-to-
maturity securities and subsidiary companies are recognised when the rights to receive payment is
established,

Net profit from securities held at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale securities are
recognised upon disposal of the securities, as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the securities,

Net brokerage income, margin income, rollover fees, nominees service and handling charges are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Corporate advisory fees are recognised as income on completion of each stage of the engagement and
issuance of invoice.

O  Employee benefits
Ehorit term emplovee benefirs

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are acerued in the
period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and the Bank.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group and the Bank pays fixed contributions
into a fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group and the Bank contributes to a national defined contribution plan (the Employee Provident
Fund) on a mandatory basis and the amounts contributed to the plan are charged to the income statement in
the period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group and the Bank has no
further payment cbligations.
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P Allowances for losses on loans and advances and other losses

Specific allowances are made for doubtful debts which have been individually reviewed and specifically
identified as bad or doubtful.

A general allowance based on a percentage of the loan portfolio is also made to cover possible losses
which are not specifically identified.

An uncollectible loan or portion of a loan classified as bad is written off afier 1aking into consideration the
realizable value of collateral, if any, when in the judgement of the management thers iz no prospect of
MeCOVEryY.

The policy on allowances for losses on loans and advances is in general more stringent than that laid down
in BNM/GP3.

Bank Megara Malaysia has granted indulgence to the local banks from complying with the requirement on
the impairment of loans and advances under the revised Guidelines on Financial Reporting for Licensed
Institutions (“BNM/GPE"). The Group and the Bank will be deemed to be in compliance with the
requirement on the impairment of loans and advances under the revised BNM/GPS if the allowances for
non-performing loans and advances are computed based on BNM's Guidelines on the Classification of
Non-Performing Loans and Provision for Substandard, Bad and Doubtful Debts (“BNM/GPI™)
régquirements.

The allowance for bad and doubtful debts arising from stock broking business is made in conformity with
the minimum requirements of allowance for bad and doubtful debts specified in Rule 1104.1 of Schedule 7
{Chapter 11) of the Rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,

() Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and arc tested annually for
impairment, Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount,

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, non-financial assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there is
separately identifiable cash flow/CGU. Assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

39



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 (continued)

) Impairment of assets {continued)

The impairment loss is charged to the income statement. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed,
In respect of other assets, any subsequent increase in recoverable amount is recognised in the income
statement.

R Impairment of securities portfolio

The Group and the Bank assess at each balance sheet date whether there is ohjective evidence that the
securities are impaired. A security or a group of securities is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the securities (a ‘loss event’) and that less event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the securities that can be reliably estimated.

(i) Securities carried at amortised cost

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on held-to-maturity instruments held at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the securities’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the securities’ original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the securities is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.

{ii) Securitics carried at fair value

In the case of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale securities, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the securities
are impaired. If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on available-for-sale securities has
been incurred, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on the securities previously recognised in income statement is
removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale securities increases and the increase can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised in the income statement,
the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.
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S Currency translations
{i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The
financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
CUITENCY.

{iiy Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

T Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that anises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events bevond the control
of the Group or the Bank or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in the
extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured
reliably,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
aecurrence or non-occurrence of oneé or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or
the Bank, The Group or the Bank does not recognise contingent assets but discloses its existence where
inflows of cconomic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.
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1 General information

The principal activities of the Bank are engaged in stock and securities broking and investment banking
business,

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are nomince services,

The immediate holding and ultimate holding companies are HLG Capital Berhad and Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad respectively, both incorporated in Malaysia.

The address of the registered office of the Bank is at Level 8, Wisma Hong Leong, 18 Jalan Perak, 50430
Kuala Lumpur.

2 Cash and short-term funds

The Group The Bank
e 25 2010 2009
BM D04 B EM 00 B0
Cash and balances with banks amd

piher finsmeial institutbons 317344 41,518 314834 4,656

blomey a1 call and deposit placements
maturing within one month 343108 197 445 3439 197,495
-ﬁﬂ..ﬂ ISU.UE 65E, 043 238,151

Included in cash and short term funds of the Group and the Bank are trust accounts maintained in trust
for clients” and dealers’ representatives amounting to RM179,723,000 (200%: RM183,477,000).

3 Deposits and placements with banks

The Group and The Bank

2010 20
RN00 RATTH R
Licensad banks 45,00 24
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4 Securities held at fair value through profit or loss

The Groap and The Bunk

i} {1} 2

R0 RN

Held-for-troding

Momey market instruments

Megotinble instrumemts of deposits 45,03 -

Private and Tslamic debt secuarities 150,543

Hank Megara Bills 158,748
414,294

Qunted securities

Shares quented in Malaysia T117 &, 101

431,411 &, 101
————iai

5 Awvailable for sale securities

The Groap and The Bank
2010 2009
LA R A R
Unguoted securities
Uniquintesd shares in Malaysia 245 245
6 Held-to-maturity securities
The Groap and The Bank
2010 HEl
G RO AR
Money market instruments
Meeotiable instruments of deposits 10,0
7 Loans and advances
The Group and The Bank
o 200k
[ LT REhNI0
Term loan financing 47,559
Shiere margin financing 46,647 55 002
Revolving esedit 28,204 31,112
(iross loans and advances 122410 86,114
Lass
Allowance for koases on boans and advancss
- spexific i1,658) {2,521}
- general (1,796) (1,234
Total net loans and sdvances 117,926 §2.339
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7 Loan and advances (continued)

(i) The maturity structure of loans and advances is as follows:

Mamring within :
= (IR year
Ciross loans and advances

{ii} The loans and advances are disbursed to the following types of customers:

Diamestic business enferprises

Individuals
Foreign entities
{ireas Joans and advances

{iii} Loans and advances analysed by interest rate sensitivity are as follows:

Fixed raie:
= Other fived mee loans

Variable rate:
- Cost plus
(iroes leans and advances

(iv) Loans and advances analysed by their economic purposes are as follows:

Purchase of segurities
Working capital
Cirogs |oans and advances

The Groap and The Bank

2000 09
RM'000 R
122410 &6, 14
122,410 B6,114

The Group and The Bank

2010 200

FLM D) RR000
75,533 2176
45 107 $31.339

1,650 1579
12410 56,014

The Group and The Bank

2010 2009

A KT TR0
46,647 55,002
78,763 11,112
122,410 #6114

The Group and The Bunk

010 2004
LA RE R&L000
1,565 10506
6k, 541 15,393

111,410 f4.114
- s
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7 Loan and advances (continued)

{v) Mon-performing loans and advances analysed by their economic purposes are as follows:

Purchase of secunties

Mom-performing loans and advances

{vi) Movements in the non-performing loans are as follows:

At 1 Jaly

Amount arising from acquisition of SBE Securities Sdn Bhd ("SBBS")
Amamrt vested gver from HLG Securities Sdn Bhd {"HLGS")

Wan-performing during the year

Amount written back
At I June
Specilic allowance

Meet non-performing loans and advamces

Ratio of non-performing loans to totn] loans
and advances net of specific allowance

{vii) Movements in the allowance for bad and doubtful debis are as follows:

Specific allowance
An 1 July

Armount vested over from HLGS

Allowances made during the year

Allowances arising from loan and
advances seguinsd from SBBS

Amount writien hack

A 30 Jualy

The Group and The Bank

2010 200

RMHIO R00
1,688 2,521
1,648 2,521

The Groap and The Bank

201 005
RM'0M RM00
2,421 -
i I,114
" 1,342
17% T
{11} {39}
1688 .50
(1658) (2.521)
0,0% [.0%
The Group The Bank
2010 2004 i 2005
RM 000 S R AG AL EHE KLY
1,521 - 1,51
. 1,342 . 1,342
174 1 178 104
- 1.170 - Li14
i11) (93} {11} {39}
1,088 251 1,6KE 2521
————— = T —
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7 Loan and advances {continued)

(vii] Movements in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts and financing are as follows (continued).

The Groap The Bank
k113 (1] ELLIE 2010 20
R FAA00 AT O RO
Creneral allowance
At L July 1,254 : 1,254 i
Amount vested over frem HLGS - 184 - 34
Amount arising from acquisition of
Southern lovestment Bank Berhad ("SIBB") - 4 - 4
Albowances arising from loan and
sdvances acquired from SBRS - 178 - 178
Allowances made during the year 542 168 842 168
Al 30 July 1,796 1,254 1,796 lﬁ.‘i
(a5 % of total Joans less specific allowaness) = 1.5% _l_ﬂ 1.8% " 1.5%

8 Clients' and brokers' balances

Clients® and brokers' balances represent amounts receivable from outstanding purchase contracts in
respect of the Group and the Bank’s stockbroking business entered on behalf of clients, amount due from

brokers and contra losses.

Performing acocounts
Mon-performing aceounts - Bad
- Dhoubifil

Less Allowance for bad and doubtful debes
- epexific
- general
- [nierest in suspenss

4

The Group and The Bank

FLij 1] e
RMT00 BT}
Bl 456 187,518
37,525 73406
I8 53
118,269 2OLETT
{37,043) (73.432)
() {509
{627) (46,68T)
80,5 144, B0




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
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& Clients' and brokers’ balances (continued)

Movements in the allowance for losses on clients’ and brokers' balances are as follows:

The Group and The Bank
2010 20005
RM 00 RA000
Specific allinvancs
At 1 July 73432 -
Amount vested over from HLGS - T4.651
Allowance made during the financial year LE] -
Allowances written back in respect of recoveries 417) (1,219)
Armount written off {36,803} s
A0 June 37,043 73431
Cieneral allowancs
AT July 50
Amount vested over from HLGS = 1
Allowance {written back)/'made during the financial year {41) A
Ab 30 June 9 50
Iniergst in suspens:
At July 46,687 3
Agmoimt vested over from HLGS ) 43,610
Imterest suspended during the financial year 5387 1.0
Interest in suspense writken alfl (51,447} -
AL 30 June 617 46,687
9 Other receivables
The Groug The Bank
2010 200% o 208
RA O EAIO00 RM00 RALOD
Interest receivable 4,0E 3 4,008 3
Derivative financizal instruments (MNode 19} 13 . 23 -
Arnourt due from subsidiary companies - - 48 i29
{(Mher receivables, deposits and prepayments 9,269 11,050 11,556 11,087
13,300 11,093 15,332 11,214
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10

11

Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM")
The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained by the Bank with BNM in compliance with

Section 37(1)c ) of the Central Bank of Malaysia Act 1958, the amount of which is determined at set
percentages of total eligible liabilties.

Investment in subsidiary companies

The Bank
2010 2009
RO RAOD
Subsidiary companies:
Unguoted sleares at cost SEH S8R
The subsidiary companies of the Bank are as follows:
Nam Place of Effective perceniage Principal activities
incorparation of ownership
2010 2009
% Ya
HLG Momines { Tempatan) 5dn Bhd  Malaysia ] 100 Agent and nominss for
Mulaysian clients
HLG Momines (Asing) Sdn Bhd balaysia 106} 10e Agent and nominee for foreign
clisnis
RC Holdings Sdin Bhd Malaysia 100 100 Crormeant
RC Research Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 fai Dommant
EC Mosninee { Tempatan) Sdn Bhd Malaysia 1] L Dioemant
RC Momines (Azing) Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100 14 Dormant
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12 Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right (o set off current tax
assets apainst current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same (ax authority. The
following amounts, determined afier appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

Dhefermed tax assels
Deferred tmx liabilities

At 1 July
Amount vested over from HLGS

Amsount arising from acquisiticn of SBBS
Transfer {from)! to income statement (Note 31)

At 30 June

The movements in deferred 1ax assets and liabilities during the vear comprise the following:

{a) Deferred tax assets

The Group and The Bank
Al July 2003

Credived{Charged) o incorms statement

AL 30 Jume 24010

A1 Juby 208

Amount vested over from HLGS
Credived to income staterment
At 30 June 2008

(al
{b)

The Group and The Bank
2010 9
BN 000 LRI
52,699 58,79
{102) {6H)
5L3m 58,192
e

The Group and The Bank
2010 2009
RM'H0G B0
£8.192 "
s B9
= T2
(5,595) 57,225
51,597 SE, 192

(Mher
General Unabsorbed femparary
allowance tnx bosses differences Total
L I RAT'DO0 RM'00 Lt LT
7 7.2 1,138 56,706
124 {5,593 (636) (6,097}
-IE.-']_ 51,636 = 62 51.699
129 1208 1,337
[ §1.251 30 57,439
327 57,231 1,238 58,796

1%
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12 Deferred Taxation (continued)

13

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

The Group and The Bank
A1 Buly 200%

Credited to income slabemient
Al 30 Jume 2010

Al July 2008

Amount vested over from HLGS

Amount arising from acquisition of SEBE
Charged{ Credited) to income stalement
At 30 June 2005

Prepaid lease payments

The Group and The Bank

Cost

At Juky

Amuount arising from acquisitien of SBEBS
At 30 June

Amaortisation

A July

Ammortisation duting the yeas
A1 50 Jure

Met beok value

Future amortisation of prepaid lease paymenis are as follows:

The Group and The Bank

= Mot [afer than | vear

- Later than | wear and not later than 5 years
= Later than 5 vears

50

Property

and  Available-for-
equipment  sale securities Tuwial
RM D00 LA LI R (e
Gl - el
(802) - (502}
1n2 - 102
2Tl 171 442
(T3 (72}
403 (IT1) 134
M - &4

=
a 2009
Leasehald Leasehald
lzmel bess lamd
than 50 S0 years
yenrs or More
R MDD
1,153 ¥
. 1,133
1,133 1,133
(1 .
(1} i)
2y i1
1,131 1,132
1 I
4 i
1,126 1,127
1,131 1,132

=




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the linancial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

14 Property and equipment

The Group

Met book value a1 1 July 2009
Additons

Dispasals

Depreciation

et book vahwe at 30 June 200

AL 30 June 2000

Cost

Accumulated deprecialion
Met book value

The Group
roct book value at 1 July 2008
Amount vested over from HLGS

Ammunt arising from acquisition of SEBS
Amuount arising from scquisttion of SIBB

Additions

Dispials

Dieprecisiion

Meq hook value at 30 June 2008

At 30 June ZO0HY

LCost

Accurulated deprecistion
Ned book value

Furniture,
Office and fittings,
Leasehold compuler and Motor
bilding equipment  renovalions vehicles Tuatal
A R R0 RAE 00 AR i LI
RGO 2,131 1,130 HY 4,210
BTT 1,499 388 1,76d
g - ) (1) (12]
(17 {1,094) {453) {102 i1,664)
543 1,914 1,174 365 5,290
B4T 13,704 0,212 1,168 14,952
(24} (11,790) {7,m38) (804) {19,656)
B43 1,914 1,174 365 5,296
T -
Furniture,
Ofiee and fitlings,
Lensehold compuisr and Maotor

building equipment  renoyvabicns vehicles Total
RM000 A 004 R0 FM M) RN M0
- 1,274 1,021 137 1432
BTl 489 52 17 1.45%
= 14 L = 16
246 184 7 1,037
= 3 = {43) 43
A1) (454) {137} (29 (681}
Bl 1,131 L 1,130 89 4210
267 12,827 7.715 791 23 2}
N {10,856 {6,585) (702} {17,990)
B0 2,131 1,130 ] 4210

5l




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

14 Property and equipment (continued)

Furniture,
Office and fittings,
Leasehald computer il Motar
Iruklding pquipment  removations vehickes Total
RM 000 o R RAM 000 RM000 RAT'O00
The Bank
Met book value af | July 2009 Bl 1,131 1,14 59 4210
Additions . 877 1,499 348 I,Tod
[Crisposals = = ) (1m (1)
Dreprechation {17} ( 1,0%4) (453) {102} {1,64)
Met book value at 30 June 2010 843 1214 2,174 365 51%
Al 30 June 2010
Cost 6T 13,704 2212 1,169 14,952
Accumulsted depreciaiion {24) (11,790 (7,038 (R4 {19,656)
Med book walue LR 1,914 1174 b5 210G
— E—
Furmitere,
Offlee and fittings,
Leasehald computer and Muotor
building equipment  Penovations vehicles Total
LRI RAT D R 00 IR HM 00
The Bank
et book value at 1 July 2008 - = = - )
Ameunt vested over from HLGS - 1,274 1,021 137 2432
Amount arising from scquisition of SERS BaT QU2 g2 14 1,953
Amount arising from acquisition of SIHB . lé . - 1&
Additions - 264 184 7 451
Digpasals . - - (43) (43)
Clepreciation (T} (411} {157) {6} =Y
et boak valwe at 30 June 2009 Bl 213 1,130 &0 4,210
= = —
At 30 June 2004
Cast B&T 12817 7,715 i} 1.0
Accumulated deprecistion (7] (10,656) 16,583) {T02) L17.5%0)
Mt book value Efl) 2131 1,130 L ﬂ-.ii-{l-

il



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43516-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

15 Goodwill

The Grouj The Bank
m 2009 o 2,009
HM 0 RMM00 RAMTNO0 AR

Cost
At 1 July 18,750 . M), M0
Goodwill arising from scquisition of SEBS and SIBB . B3.39% . BG40
Goodwill arising from scquisiion of HLGS . 3 - 590
Goodwill arising during the year 236 . 134
Impatrment made during the year - {57,236) - (57,236)
AL 30 Juse 18,986 18,730 30,336 30,000

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units

Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash-generating-units (“CGUs™):

The Group The Bank
o 2009 pL0 1] 2,004
AR RAOO0 R0 FM000
TG
lwestement banking amd stock broking 14,986 28750 30,236 3 0600
e —

Impairment test on goodwill

The fair value is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash fow
projections based on financial budgets approved by directors covering a one-year period. Cash flows
beyond the one-year period are assumed to grow at 4% p.a. (2009: 4% p.a.) to infinity.

The cash flow projections are derived based on a number of key factors including the past performance
and management's expectations at the market development. The pre-tax discount rate is
0,6%(2009:11.4%) and reflect specific risks relating to the segment.

An impairment charge of RM37,236,000 was recognised in 2009 for goodwill ansing from the
investment banking and stockbroking segment.

For the current year, impairment was not required for goodwill arising from investment banking and
stockbroking segment.

Management belicves that any reasonable possible change to the assumptions applied is not likely cause
the recoverable amount to be lower than carrying amount.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

16 Intangible assets - Computer software

17

Cost

At July

Agmount vested over from HLGS

Amount arising from acquisition of SIBE
Additions

Transber

At 30 June

Amoertksation

Al 1 July

Amount vested over from HLGS
Additions

AL 30 June

Net book valae

Deposits from customers

Fixed deposits
(i Marurity structuse of fixed deposils is as follows:
Dise within six menihs

(i} The deposits are sourced from the following customers

Business enberprises

I8 Deposits and placements of other financial institutions

Licensed banks
{hber financiad instituisons

34

The Group and The Bank

2010 P
RM"(H0 RAD00

8,711 z

! &150

< 43

935 528

(11] -

9645 8711

(7,784} .

' (7.598)
(632) (186

(8. 418) (7,784}
1,119 937

The Group and The Bank
1010 200%
HM'000 RA000
A.IE %
e
31,218 -
31,214

The Groap and The Bank

0 2009

[ RITE] MO0

61,000 -
539,930 9,820
Gl 990 49,820




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

19 Derivative financial instruments

The Groap and The Bank
L Hoh
LT THO0G RMANG0
Derivatives at fair valoe through profit or loss
« [milerest rale swaps 13
Total derivative finuneial assels I
Derivatives at fair value through profit or los
- Futures {1,054 -
Tiodal desivative financial liahilities (1,194}

20 Clients' and brokers' balances

Included in clients’ and brokers' balances are clients' trust balances, held n trust for clients of
RM153,563,000 (2009: RM152,706.000).

21 Payables and other liabilities

The Giroup The Bank
010 2009 20T 2005
RN e} EMA00 EAG T RA000
Amount due 1o subsidiary companies . . 3 93
Amount due to hobding compary b ] B.645 171 8645
Remisiers' trust deposits 10,687 12,816 10,687 128146
Oither payables and sccrued liabilities (Mote &) 195 Rd6 13,213 17,001 11,887
Interes payable ™3 EL) T3 k1
Post emphoyment bencfits obligation
« defined contribution plin 420 Bl 410 30
Derivative linancial instraments (Mote 19) 1,194 - 1,194 .
39,122 -.ISE.IH- 30,376 36332

The amount due to holding company and subsidiary companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

{a) Included in other payables and accrued liabilities are as follows:

(i) A net balance of RM#&,263,000 derived from a bond amounting to RM177,750,000 set off against
deposit from customer and coupon received on the bond of RM184,013,000, The terms of the
arrangement of the acquisition of the bond required the issuer of the bond to deposit at least an
amount eguivalent or higher with the Bank. The net amount of RM6,263,000 is presented in the
halance sheet in accordance with FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation, where the Bank
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and has the intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.,

(i} An amount reccived from a customer of RM280 million which is 1o be placed as fixed deposits
on 1 July 2010,



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

22 Share Capital

The Bank
000 2004

RN 000 RRAT (0
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of RMI.00 sach AT A0, 000
Tsswed and fully paid capital:
Ordinary shares of BM1.00 sach
Arl July 123,504 S0
Issued during the year 142,035 123,000
At 30 June 265,535 123,500

On 30 March 2010, the Bank issued 142,035,171 units of fully paid up ordinary shares at the par value of
RM1.00 each, out of the existing share premium account.

23 Redeemable preference shares

The Group and The Bank
20110 LG

M M (D

Anthorised:

Mon=cumulative redesmable preference shares of RMILD each A0, ) 400,000

Issued und fully paid capital:

Mon-cumulative redecmable preference shares of RM0.01 coch

AL T July 1,631 -

Issued during the year - 1631

AL 0 June 1,631 1631

On 31 March 2009, Bank Negara Malaysia had approved for the authorised ordinary shares of
RM1,000,000,000 to be divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each and 40,000,000, 04
non-cumulative redeemable preference shares ("RPS") of RMO.01 each.

On the same day, the Bank had issued 163,076,524 RPS of RMO0.01 each at a premium of RM0.99 per
share to HLGS pursuant te the vesting of the securities business 1o the Bank. The RPS issued by the
Bank are recorded at a value equal 1o the existing book values of net assets of HLGS as at date of transfer
and original goodwill recorded at the helding company of the Bank.

The main features of the RPS are as follows:

{a) The RPS have right to dividends at the descretion of the Directors of the Bank.
{b) The RPS rank pari passu in all aspects among themselves.

{¢) The RPS will not be convertible into ordinary shares.

{d) The RPS have no fixed maturity date.

{e) The RPS will not be listed on any stock exchange.



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company noe: 43526-F
{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

14 Reserves

The Groap The Baik
BL 200 10 200
RAIO00 RALO00 M WM} RSO0
Retzined profits 9.415 2,743 10,644 1.963
Share premium (&) - 142,015 - 142,033
Statutory reserve (b} 11,144 4,362 11,044 4,362
20,459 H‘J,H.EI" 11,688 150,360

(2) Share premium arising from redeemable preference shares issued by the Bank was utilised to issue
142,035,171 units of fully paid up erdinary shares of RM1.00 each on 30 March 2010,

(b) The statutory reserve is maintained in compliance with Section 36 of the Banking and Financial

Institutions Act, 1989 and is not distributable as cash dividend.

Interest income
The Group The Bank
010 2008 2010 2009
R RIE] B0 RN Do EALTI0H
Lioans and advances
- Interest income other than
recoverss from NPLs 6,211 3,027 6.211 2620
Money at call and deposil placements
with financial institutions 1,700 iTE 1,799 M3
Securities held at fulr value through
prafit or loss 2603 - 1,603 -
Avvailable-for-sale secuntics 1,318 - 2328
Hebd-to-maturity securities 192 - 151 ¥
Oithers ED14 BHH £014 49
20147 4,493 20,147 3,781
Accretion of discount less
amortisation of premiam (115) (115) .
[rterest suspended (5387) {1.07TT (53BT) (1077
14,645 1,416 14,645 2,705




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements

for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

26 Interest expense

Deposits and placernents of banks and
other financial nstitutions
Dizposits from customers

27 MNon-interest income

Fee income

Brokerage income
Service charges und fises
Cither fee koo

Met income from securifies
et rendised gain from sale of securities
held a1 fuir vales through profit o loss
Drividend income from:
- securities held ot fuir value through
profit or boss
- pvailable=for-sale securities
Met unrealised gain on revaluation of securities
hedd at fair value through profit or loss

Oiher income

Geaim o =ale of property and
cquipment

Fareign exchange gain

Cither non-opersting imoomse

The Group The Bank
010 2009 010 2009
R R0 RNMT00 RA000
1,151 18% 1,151 189
Ilm 3 2..'."!'-‘5 5
3,947 1 3947 I
The Group The Bank
2nia 2004 nin 2004
RAM B0 RO EM HH RAA'0DH
42,264 21415 41,264 20,007
i,8%] 28 6891 208
1,580 328 1375 317
51,744 21,971 51,530 0,532
897 % §o7 "
508 41 298 LU
ar a4 » 44
1,448 ThE 1,448 Ti8
1,950 1,163 2,080 1,163
148 72 148 72
163 - 163 -
175 el 175 9
SHE 169 SR 141
55 310 23,303 55 (i 11,836
-

]



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements

for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

28 Overhead expenses

Personnel costs

Establishment coss

Murketing sxpenses

Astmimsiration and general expensss

The Group The Bank
zom il 2010 b
A R RhA'H) B0 BM K0
15,942 11,605 25,826 380
11,251 5,338 11,251 4,443
636 03 636 175
8,149 2,760 8,082 2560

(i} Persomnel costs comprise the following:

46,018 19,908
————

45,795 16,558
———————

The Group The Bank
FALHL LA 2000 Mg
R0 ' HM000 EMKIO
Sularies, bomus and ol lownnces 1640 7,000 21505 6,128
Viduntary Separation Scheme [“V357)
COmpEnsation . 3,364 - 2184
Oither employess benefits 5,341 1,241 £311 1,068
15,081 11,605 15816 4,380
—— - —a
(ii} Establishment costs comprise the following:
The Group The Bank
pLid ] 2005 200 29
RN 000 R DO IR RO
[eprockation of property and equipment 1,666 641 1,664 L
Aumortisation of intangible asseis 632 186 632 156
Bental of premises 3,835 2,074 3,535 1,623
Inforenation technobogy EXpenses 4,123 1. TH4 4,113 1,675
(hers Q05 603 995 358
11,251 3,338 11,251 4,443
— - —

i



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{ Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

28 Overhead expenses (continued)

(iii) Marketing expenses comprise the following:

The Group The Bank
2000 2005 010 2004
RM'000 RM000 RM'D0) LRIl
Advertisement mnd publicity 12 q n 4
Emertainment and business improvements 495 B4 4958 fitk
Travelling expensss LI 21 10 Té
Others 19 26 19 2
- 636 pllL] 036 ll!-_
{iv)} Administration and peneral expenses comprise the following:
The Group The Bank
onn 2009 010 9
R0 RO RM 0 A0
Teleiransmission expenses 081 THe o3 647
Statiopery and printing expenses 436 197 435 183
Professional fees 1,543 492 1,834 474
Central Depository System {"CDS") fees 123 Zad 773 250
Stamp, postage and courker 3 218 3T 203
Management fez 1,032 458 1,032 158
Auditors” remuneratzon:
- statutory audit 136 136 127 120
- ather fees - 20 ’ 0
(rhers 2,106 139 1078 191
B, 149 2,764 = 8,082 2,560

Included in the personnel costs of the Group and the Bank are Directors' remuneration totalling

RM4,383,000 (2009: RME9,000).



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-P
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

29 Allowance for/(writeback of) losses on loans and advances and other losses

The Group The Bank
i 2005 1000 2005
RAT'OR0 RMAG RM'T00 HMR000
Allerwance for bosses on boans and
nel vanCes:
() Specific allowanos
- made during the financial year 178 104 178 [
- written back (1n {9%) {11) {39}
{b) General allowance
- made during the financial year 42 16% 547 168
T 177 7o 21
Bad dzbis on loans nnd sdvances
= Regoverad (413 = (41} -
Albowancs for losses on clients’ and
brokers” balnnces
{a) Specific nllowance
- made during the finencial year 811 - #231 -
- written hack {417 (1,219) 417 (1219
by General allowance
- {writien back)/made during the financial year {41} A {41 40
an (11T 373 {L179)
1,041 (1,002} 1,041 [9446)

30 Directors' remuneration

Forms of remuncration in aggregate for all Directors for the year are as follows :

The Group and The Bank
g 2004
RAM0H WA (R
Managing Directar {appointed 05 Executive Director on 24 Movember 20100
- Salaries and other emoluments 4,156 .
= Benefits-in-kind f
4,162
Mon-Executive Directors:
- Fess 211 &9
Total 4,383 89

The movement and details of the Directors of the Bank in office and interests in shares and share options
are reported in the Directors” Report.

6l



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

31 Taxation

The Group The Bank
2010 2009 2010 2009
M0 RA000 RAT'000 PAE000
Mnlaysian income 1ax = 104 = -
Transfer from/(te) deferred taxation
- CUITent year 5505 (57,225) 5,595 {57,225}
5,595 {.Sz.lilj B3 {ﬂjﬂ

A reconciliation of income tax applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income tax rate to

income tax expenses of the Group and the Bank is as follows:

The Groop The Bank
2010 2 2010 2009
R R RM 00 RO
Profiv|Loss) before toxation 18,949 {49,617} 18,958 (48,500)
Tax caleulated at & rate of 25%
(2009; 25%) 4,737 {12,404) 4,740 {12,125)
Tax effiects of:
- Incoame nol subject (o 1ax - (53] (55)
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 43K 14498 K55 14488
- Previoushy unrecopnited lax lossss . {37231} (¥.231)
- Tax savings from wiilisation of brought forward bosses - {2,302) - {1,302)
- Cither temporary differences not
recopnised previously - in -
Tanation £ 55 (57,121) 5,595 {57,225}




HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial vear ended 30 June 2010

32 Earning per share

The basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year of the
Group and the Bank by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year as follows:

Weighted average namber of number
of ordinary shares in issus

Mt profit atiributable
equity holders of the Bank

Bagic earnings per shane (sen)

The Groap
2010
HA' 000

150,301

13,354

The Bank
200 2010 2009
R0 RM B0 TR
31,503 159,301 31,503
T.504 13,363 8.724
rill s 4 1.7

There is no diluted eamings/(loss) per share as the Group and the Bank have no category of dilutive

potential ordinary shares,

33 Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incur certain contingent
liuhilities with legal recourse 1o their customers. No material losses are anticipated as a resull of these

The Growp and The Bank

Derivative Financinl Instruments
Imterest rate related contraets:

- (e vear or lesg

« Chver e year to five yenrs

Commitments

Any commitment that are unconditional iy
carcelled ol any time by the bank
without prior notice

Total

2 1L
Credit Risk Credit Risk
Frincipal  Equivalent wekghted Primgipal  Equivabent weighted
amunt amaunl ASSELE amount amount S5l
RM'0DD RM RO M0 R 000 HAM'000
G&0,004 - a
2,545 000 1,021 204 <
3,235,000 1,021 204 = =
267940 = 3127473 =
1492940 1,021 4 N4 . -
— i —

i



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

36 Capital adequacy

BNM guidelines require the Bank to maintain a certain minimum level of capital funds against the “risk-
weighted” value of assets and certain commitments and contingencies. The capital funds of the Bank as

at 30 June 2010 met the mirimum requirement,

The capital ratios of the Bank are computed in accordance with BNM's revised Risk Weighted Capital

Adequacy Framework (Basel IT).

(i) The capital adequacy ratios of the Bank are as follows:

The Bank
00 2004
RAM"0M) SR
Before and after deducting proposed dividends:
Core capltal ratio 13.6% 17.59%
Rizk-weighted capital ratio J52% 34.M4%
{ii) The components of Tier 1 and Tier Il Capital of the Bank are as follows:
The Bank
2010 209
M08 R0
Tier=1 l:'l|.|-|l.i|
Pard-up ordinary share capatal 165,538 [ 23,504
Cither reserves 11,688 8325
Less: Goodwill (30,236) (30,000
Less: Deferred tax assets - net {52,597) (58,192)
Taotal Tier-1 capital 104,39 43,633
Tier-1 capital
Redeemable preference shares (“RPS") 1.631 1,631
Share premium on RPS 142,035
Geeperal allowance for losses on boans and advances,
and other losses 1,505 1,104
[otal Tier-I capital 3AM 144,970
Eligible Teer-2 capital 3,436 43,633
Total copital 07826 87,266
Less: Investment in subsidianes (SRR} {588
Total capital base 07,238 B, 6TE
= —
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36 Capital adequacy (continued)

{iii) Breakdown of risk-weighted assets in the various risk weights:

The Bank

2010 20004
[ BT T
Credit risk 156,198 150,214
Market risk 177472 12,202
Crperational risk 84,507 45 653
618,178 248,069

—_—

(iv} Breakdown of risk-weighted assets (“RWA™) by exposures in each major risk categories of the Bank:

2000
The Bank
Risk weighted Capital
Exposure class Gross exposure Met exposure asEEls requirement
RM'(HD R 000 RM'000 RM 0
Credit Bisk
Cn-Hilance Sheet Exposures
Sovereigns Ceniral Banks 15,799 15,799 - -
Banks, Development Financial Instinutions
&MDBs 738,779 TIR,TTY 147,756 11,820
Corporntes TLEIT 77427 ThASES 6,084
Oither nssels 19,121 19,121 19099 1,528
Equity exposure 124 Bik5 124 805 113,084 A7
Todal for On-Balance Sheet Expasores 085 731 085,731 355,504 25,479
(- Balance Sheet Exposures
O balance shest sxposures other than _
OTC derivatives or credit derivatives 1,021 1,021 104 L&
Tatal for Off-Balance Sheet expasures 14021 1,021 104 16
Total On and Of-Balance Sheet exposures 086, 752 086,752 356,108 18495
Market risk
Long Position Short Position
Interest Rate Risk 3 484,640 3, 105307 370,353 157,885 12,631
Foreign Currency Risk 10 & 1 13 I
Equity Risk 7417 = 2117 19,575 {566
177473 14,198
Operational risk 84,507 G, 761
Total RWA and
Capital Requirement 618,178 49,454

i



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no; 43526-F
[ Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

33 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Bank Negara Malaysia, vide a letter dated 18 March 2009 has allowed capital treatment on the undrawn
portion of the credit facilities under Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy Framework to apply a 0% credit
conversion factor {instead of 20%) on the undrawn portion of credit facilities with the original maturity of
less than one year as a temporary measure 1o support lending activities of the banking industry. This
measure is applicable until 31 December 2010,

3 Capital commitments

The Group and The Bank
m 2009
R Tohd " Oel
Property and equipment
= Approved and comracted but not provided for e q
= Approved but nol comtracted for 115 1,384
1,079 1,388

35 Lease commitments

The Group and the Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises and hired equipment, all of
which are classified as operating leases. A summary of the future minimum lease payments, met of
sublease, under non-cancellable operating lease commitment are as follows:

The Group and The Bank

2010 2009

[TA R b0

L.ess than one year 4,285 1,799
More than ome vear bt less than five years B, 2184 151
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for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

36 Capital adeguacy (continued)

(iv) Breakdown of risk-weighted assets (“RWA™) by exposures in each major risk categories of the Bank

{continued):
209
The Bank
Risk weighted Capltal
Exposure Class (iross exposure MNet exposure AxElE Fequirement
RN M) RN MO0 MO0
Creglic Risk
CIn-Ralence Sheel Er_pus BFES
Sovercigna/Central Banks 15 15
Banks, Development Financial Institwtions
& MDA 138,152 138152 47,630 1E1D
Carportes il Lz 311z iz 2489
Equity exposure 03612 93,612 93,602 74859
Oher assets 17,882 17882 17,560 1,420
Chefaulied exposures . - . 3
Tuotal for On-Balance Sheet Exposuores 380,773 380,773 150,214 15,217
Off-Balanee Sheet Exposires
OTC derivatives - -
(Y balance sheet exposures other than
QT derivatives or credit derivatives - - - -
Defiulted exposures - - - -
Totul for Off-Balance Sheet exposures = - o =
Totul On and Off-Balance Sheet expusures 3R0,773 IR0,773 150,214 15217
Market risk
Long Position Short Position 5
Interesi Rate Risk - = h
Foreign Cumrency Risk - - 5 : .
Equity Risk G, 1010 - 6,101 12,202 5Th
122002 Eali
Operational risk 45,633 652
Total BWA and
Capital Requirement 248 060 19,845

The Bank does not have any issuances of Profit-sharing Investment Account ("PSIA") used as a risk
absorbent.

The Bank has adopted the Standardised Approach for credit risk and market risk and Basic Indicator
Approach for operational risk computation.
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial vear ended 30 June 2010

36 Capital adequacy (continued)

iv) Off-Balance Sheet exposures and their related counterparty credit risk of the Bank are as follows:

000
The Bank Pozitive
Total Total eredit Fair value Total risk
principal equivalent  of derivalive welghted
amauni amoant contracts amount
L BT 14 LT RN (0 i W
Derivative Anancial Instruments
Interest raie related contracis:
- (e year or less HR0, B - - il
- {ver one year 1o five yenrs 1,545 004 11 21 204
3,225,000 1,021 21 204
Commltments
Any commitment that an: unconditionally
cancellad at any time by the bank
without prier notics
- maturity less than | year 267,940 -
Tutal 3,497 940 1,021 .El_ 204
101
The Bank
Posidive
Total Total eredit fair value Total risk
principal equivalent of derivative weighted
mmininl amount conlracts amauni
RAM"M0 RM" M0 RN 000 BA00
Commitments
Any commbiment that are unconditionally
caneelbed arany time by the bank
without prior nothes
- maturity |ess than 1 year g -
Total 3274758 - - -

it
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no; 43526-F
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

37 Significant related party transactions

{a) Related parties and relationships

The related parties of and their relationships with the Bank are as

bed purties
Hong Leong Company {balaysia) Berhad
Hong Leong Financial Group Berhad
HLG Capital Berhind

Subsidiary companies of HLG Capial Berhad as
dischosed in its financial slalenseiis

Suhsidiary companies of Hong Leong Finaneial Group
Berhad as disclosed in its financial statements

Heng Leong Indusiries Berbiad and iz subsidiary and
mssoctated companies as disclosed in s financial stalements

Hurmse Inchestries (Malaysiaj Berhod and iis subsidiary and
associnted compailes 88 disclossd in its fnancial stateenents

Guoeo Group Limited and it= subsidiary and nssocistedd
companies as dischosed in its financinl satements

GuocoLand (Malaysia) Berhad and its subsidiary and
associaled companies 25 disclosed in its financial statements

Subsidiary companses of the Bank as disclosed in Note 11

Key mansgement persennel

Hebated parties of key management personne| {deemed
as rzlabed o the Bank)

T

Relationship

Ulimate holding company
Penulbtimate holding company
Immediate holding compamy

Subsadiary companies of immedinte
holding company

Suhsidiary companies of Pemltimnte
hislding compamy

Subsidinry and asseciated companies of
ultimate kelding company

Subsidiary and associated companies of
ultimate holding company

Subsidiary and associsted companics of
ultimate halding company

Subsidipry and associaied companies of
ultimate holding company

Subsidiary companies of the Bank

The key management personnel of the Bank
censists of:

- All Directors of the Bank and four
memibers of senior management of the Baak

(i} Close family members and deperdents of
koey management personne|

{ii} Entities that ure controlled, jointhy
controlled or significantly influenced by,
or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or
indirecily by key maragement persomnc]
ar its close family members



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010
37 Significant related party transactions {continued)

(b} Related parties transactions

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

ther Key
Parent related management
COMmpany companics personnel
The Group RM M0 RM00 RM 0
2ia
[meome
Brokernpge inoomes - 1,851 67
Expenditure
Rental = 1,169
Management fees - I,%2 -
Chber miscellanemes expenses u 337 &
= 3638 -
Amoonts due from:
Current account = 170,476 -
Amounts due o
Interhank placements - 5,000
Cithers T2 =
172 L
=
(iher Key
Parent related managemeni
COmpany companics personnel
The Groap RMon A R R Dol
20y
Income
Brokernge income = 1.156 39
[aterest on interbank placements - PP -
Dividends received - 140 -
- 1,528 349
— -
Expendilure
Rental - 6 -
Interest on imerbank borrowings = i £
Management fees a1 16 -
Cither miscellaneous expenses - 146
42 1,594
e
Amounis dog from:
Current acoount . 10,047 -
[mierbank placements = ET1008 .
Interest receivable on nierbank placements - 2
181,167
Amaounts due bo:
Oithers 8,645
8643
-

71



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

37 Significant related party transactions (continued)

ib) Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with related parties are as follows (continued):

Oher Key
Paremi related managemenl
company Subsidiaries ComAnies peraoanel
The Bank RN RA000 248 BT L]
2010
Income
Brokerage income - 8 1,851 67
Expenditure
Hental - = 2. 069 -
Management fees - = 1,032 -
Cither miscellaneous expenses - - 3 =
- 3,638 =
—_ -—
Amounts due from:
Current sccoumd & . 170476 -
Amounts due in:
Interbank placemsnts - = £, 004 .
Cithers 172 - - -
iy ] - 000 -
ither Key
Parentl related management
COM ATy Subsidinries companies perdonne
The Batk RMDO AT R RN DM RAT DM
2009
Income
Brokerage income . c 1,156 39
Interest on interbank placements = - 232 -
Divighemeds received - " 140 .
- - 1,528 34
r— —_
Expenditure
Fenial - . il =
Inserest on interbank borrowings - - &1 =
Manngemen fees 02 . 66
{Hher mbscellancous expenses - - 146
52 - 1,394
Amaunts dwe From:
Current accoun - % 10,067 =
Interbank plocements - Z 171,098
Interest recervable on interbank placemems - - z
Others - 129 .
- 119 181,167
== . —ee
Amuunts due to: £ 645 95
Others 8645 a3
T

|
i-a



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial vear ended 30 June 2010

37

38

Significant related party transactions (continued)
{¢) Kev management personnel

by mamapement compensition

The Group and The Bank
010 Mg
R0 BRD00
Salaries and ather short-term emploves benelit 4,162 44
Defined contribution plan 490 E
3661 4

Included in the above is the Directors’ remuneration which is disclosed in Note 30.
{d) Credit transactions and exposures with connected parties

There are no credit exposures with connected parties as per Bank Negara Malaysia's revised
Guidelines on Credit Transactions and Exposures with Connected Parties.

Financial instruments

Risk management objectives and policies

Risk Management is one of the core activities of the Bank to strike a balance between sound practices
and risk-return. An effective risk management is therefore vital to ensure that the Bank conducts its
business in a prudent manner to ensure that the risk of potential losses is reduced.

Credit Risk

Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of credit
approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Credit risks include credit assessment risk, settlement
risk, margin finance default risk and concentration limit risk.

The Bank has set out specific policies and guidelines on the extension of trading/credit limits to its
salaried and commissioned dealer’s representatives and clients. Specific requirements andior
parameters in accordance with regulatory requirements are set out for the granting of limits that
provide for proper spread and control of the credit risks.

Loans and advances are monitored on an ongoing basis via group-wide management reporting

procedures, The stockbroking business also adheres to the rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
on significant exposure to any individual customer or financial instrument.

LE |



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

38 Financial instruments (continued)
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse fluctuation in market prices, such as interest rates
and share prices. The Bank monitors its exposure on all equity sccurities held through its business
activities and management is alerted on the financial impact of these risks with regard to market risk
concentration of the Group and capital adequacy of the Bank.

The Bank does not use any derivative financial instruments in managing market risk.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels of
interest rates and shifis in the composition of the assets and liabilities. [nterest rate risk exposure 15
identified, measured, monitored and controlled through limits and procedures set by the Asset and
Liability Management Committee {*ALCO’) to protect total net interest income from changes in
market interest rates.

The Bank has no substantial long term interest-bearing assets as at 30 June 2010 and the investment
in financial assets is mainly short term in nature.

Interest rates on loans and advances are fixed or determined on a floating rate basis in accordance
with loan arrangements with the various customers. It is the practice of the Bank to ensure that the
interest rates charged will not be lower than the prevailing market rates while complying with the
provigions of the Money Lenders Ordinance, 1951.

The Bank seeks to achieve a balance between certainty of funding and a flexible and cost-effective
borrowing structure. The Bank manages the funding requirements of its subsidiary companies and
allocates funds in such a manner that all business units maintain optimum levels of liguidity for
their operations, which is sufficient to meet the necessary regulatory requirements and without
leaving the funding facilities unutilised.

i



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

38 Financial instruments (continued)
Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of financial loss arising from the inability to fund increases in assets and/or
meet obligations as they fall due. Financial obligations arise from the withdrawal of deposits,
funding of loans committed and repayment of borrowed funds. It is the Bank’s policy 1o ensure
there is adequate liquidity across all business units to sustain ongoing operations, as well as
sulficient liquidity to fund asset growth and strategic opportunities.

One of the tools for monitoring liquidity is the New Liquidity Framework ("NLF") as introduced by
Bank Negara Malaysia. The NLF assesses liquidity based on the contractual and behavioural pattern
of cash flow of assets, liabilities and off balance sheet commitments as well as taking into
consideration the realisable cash value of eligible liquefiable securities.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct and indirect loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes and controls due to error, inefficiencies, omission and unauthorised access, including
external events beyond the control of the Bank. In order to reduce or mitigate these risks, the Bank
has established internal control mechanisms within the various levels of the organisation, which
include the setting up of procedural and control systems by the various units to manage the day-to-
day operational risk inherent in their respective business and functional areas.
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

38 Financial instruments (continued)

(¢) Fair value for financial instruments

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and off-balance sheet linancial
instruments. Fair value is the amount at which a financial asset could be exchanged or a financial
liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The
information presented herein represents the estimates of fair values as at the balance sheet datc.

Where available, quoted and observable market prices are used as the measure of fair values. Where
such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair values are estimated based on a
range of methodologies and assumptions regarding risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors. Changes in the
uncertainties and assumptions could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair value
estimates.

The fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:
Short term funds and placements with financial institutions

For deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions with maturities of less than
six months, the carrving value is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For deposits and placements
with maturities six months and above, estimated fair value is based on discounted cash flows using
prevailing money market interest rates at which similar deposits and placements would be made
with financial institutions of similar credit risk and remaining period to maturity.

Securities held at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

The estimated fair value is generally based on quoted and observable market prices. Where there is
no ready market in certain securities, the Group and the Bank establish the fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash
flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

Loans and advances

For floating rate loans, the camrving value is generally a reasonable estimate of fair value, For fixed
rate loang, the fair value is estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the
prevailing market rates of loans with similar credit risks and maturities.

In addition, fair value information for non-financial assets and liabilities are excluded as they do not
fall within the scope of FRS 132 which requires the fair value information to be disclosed. These
include other receivables, tax recoverable, investment in subsidiary companies, deferred tax assets,
prepaid lease pavments, property and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, payables and other
liabilities.
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F

(Incorporated im Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

38 Financial instruments (continued)

{¢) Fair value for financial instruments (continued)
Clients’ and brokers® balances

The carrying amount as at balance sheet date approximate fair values due to relatively shor term
maturity of these financial instrumens.

(Mher assets and liabilities

The carrying value less any estimated allowance for financial assets and liabilities included in “other
assets and liabilities’ are assumed to approximate their fair values as these items are not materially
sensitive to the shift in market interest rates.

Dveposits from customers

For deposits from customers with maturities of less than six months, the carrying amounts are
reasonable estimates of their fair values. For each deposit with maturities of six months and above,
fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows based on prevailing market rates for similar
deposits from customers.

Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions

The estimated fair values of deposits and placements of other financial institutions with maturities of
less than six months approximate the carrying values. For the items with maturities six months and
ahove, the fair values are estimated based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money market
interest rates with similar remaining period to maturities.

Credit related commitment and contingencies

The net fair value of these items was not calculated as estimated fair values are not readily
ascertainable. These financial instruments generally relate to credit risks and attract fees in line with
market prices for similar arrangements. They are not presently sold nor traded. The fair value may be
represented by the present value of fees expected to be received less associated costs,

The shove mentioned range of methodologies and assumptions had been used in deriving the fair
values of the Group's and the Bank's financial instruments at balance sheet date. The total fair value of
each financial instrument approximates the total carrying value.

In addition, fair value information for non-financial assets and liabilities are excluded as they do not
fall within the scope of FRS 132 which requires the fair value information to be disclosed. These
include other receivables, statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia, tax recoverable, investment
in subsidiary companies, deferred tax assets, prepaid lease payments, property and equipment,
goodwill, imangible assets, payables and other liabilities,
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HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-F
i Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

39 Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The Group and the Bank make estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the relaied actual results. To enhance the
information content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have material
impact to the Group's and the Bank's results and financial position are tested for sensitivity to
changes in the underlying parameters. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing 3 material adjusiment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are outlined below:

{n) Allowance for losses on loans and advances

The Group and the Bank makes allowance for losses on loans and advances based on assessment of
recoverability. Whilst management is guided by the relevant BNM guidelines, management makes
judgement on the future and other key factors in respect of the recovery of loans and advances.
Among the factors considered are the Group's and the Bank's aggregate exposure Lo the borrowers,
the net realisable value of the underlying collateral value, the viability of the customer’s business
model, the capacity 1o generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations and the aggregate
amount and ranking of all other creditor claims.

(b} Impairment of goodwill

The Group and the Bank perform an impairment review o an annual basis to ensure that the carrying
value of the goodwill does not exceed its recoverable amount from the CGLU to which the goodwill is
allocated. The recoverable amount represents the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from continuing operations. Therefore, in arriving at the recoverable amount,
management exercise judgement in estimating the future cash flows, growth rate and discount rate,

40 Significant events during the financial year

| T f bonus share

On § February 2010, the Bank sought BNM's approval to undertake a proposed bonus issue of up to
142,035,171 new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in HLIB ("Shares") to HLG Capital Berhad
("HLGC"). The Shares were proposed 1o be issued as fully paid bonus shares out of the share
premium reserve of HLIB.

On 22 March 2010, approval was granted by BNM on the issuance of 142,035,171 Shares by
capitalising the Bank's share premium reserve.

On 30 March 2010, the Bank issued 142,035,171 Shares to HLGC by capitalising a sum of
RM142.035,171.00 being the entire amount standing in the Bank's share premium reserve.,

The Shares issued during the year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing Shares of the
Bank,



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

Company no: 43526-1

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

41

42

Subsequent events after the financial year
Proposed integration of the Bank and HLG Futures Sdn Bhd ("HLG Futures")

On 22 April 2010, the Bank had entered into a Business Transfer Agreement with HLG Futures,
whereby HLG Futures would transfer all its assets, liabilities, activity, business and the undertaking
of the business carried on by HLG Futures as a going concern (“HLG Futures Business”) to the Bank
("Proposed Integration™) with effect from 31 July 2010 (or such other date as may be agreed by the
parties hereto) ("Transfer Date®).

The consideration for the transfer of the HLG Futures Business would be based on the value of the
net assets of HLG Futures as at the Transfer Date, and will be satisfied by the Bank in cash.

The Proposed Integration is subject to, inter alia, the following:

{i} obtaining the order of the High Court for the vesting of HLG Futures Business in HLIB;

{ii} the approval of the Minister of Finance through the Securities Commission; and

{iiil) the approval of the SC for the application for a Capital Market Service licence to carry on the
business of trading futures contracts by HLIB.

Securities Commission had, vide its letter dated 18 June 2010, informed that the transfer of HLG
Futures's business to the Bank has been approved pursuant to Section 139 of the Capital Markets and
Services Act 2007,

On 12 July 2010, the Bank and HLG Futures entered into a Supplemental Business Transfer
Agreement to revise the Transfer Date to 2 October 2010,

On 28 July 2010, the High Court has granted the approval for the Proposed Integration.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Bank in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 30 July 2010.

9



HONG LEONG INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
Company no: 43526-P
{ Incorporated in Malaysia)

Statement by Directors pursuant to
Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Khalid Ahmad bin Sulaiman and Lee Jim Leng, two of the Directors of Hong
Leong Investment Bank Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Direetors, the financial
statements set out on pages 15 to 91 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the Bank as at 30 June 2010 and of the results of their operations for the year ended
on that date; and the cash flows of the Group and the Bank for the year then ended on that date, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965, the MASB Approved Accounting Standards
in Malaysia for Entities Other Than Private Entities and Bank Negara Malaysia Guidelines.

Jn behalf of the Board.

8 E};pg:nb:r 2010

Kuala Lumpur

Statutory declaration pursuant to
Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

I Lau Yew Sun, the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Hong Leong
Investment Bank Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements sel oul on pages
15 10 91 arc to the best of my knowledge and belicf, correct and | make this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations
Act, 1960,

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
the abovenamed Lau Yew Sun at Kuala Lumpur in e

Kuala Lumpur in Wilayah Persekutuan on
8 September 2010

Before me,

No. W 538

Tan Seok Kett
Pesuruhjayva Sumpa
Commissioner for O

AN SEOK KETT Lot 350, 3d Floor, Wisses MPL,
Jesn Rega Chulan,

00 Kk Lusgpar



PRICEAVATERHOUSE( COPERS (@

PricewaterhouseCoopers

IAF 114E)

Chartered Accauntants

Laved 10, 1 Sentral, Jatan Travers
Kugta Lumgur Santral

P O Bax 10182

EQTOE Kuala Luempus, Malaysia
Telephone +80 [ 2173 1186
Facslmile +60 §3) 2173 1288

Independent Auditors’ Report to the member of WINW.DWC.COM
Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company no; £3526-F)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad, which comprise
the balance sheets as at 30 June 2010 of the Group and of the Bank, and the income statements,
statements of changes in equity and cash flow statements of the Group and of the Bank for the vear
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out
on pages 15 to 91.

Directors” Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the Companies Act, 1965, the MASB Approved Accounting
Standards in Malaysia for Entities Other Than Private Entities and Bank Negara Malaysia
Guidelines. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to frand or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the aodit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether doe to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal conmtrol relevant to the Bank's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the member of

Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad (continued)
{Incorporated in Malaysu)
(Company no: 43526-F)

Report on the Financial Statements (continued)
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with the
Companies Act, 1965, the MASB Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia for Entities Other
Than Private Entities and Bank Negara Malaysia Guidelines so as to give & true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Bank as of 30 June 2010 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965, in Malaysia, we also report the
following:

{(a)  In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be
kept by the Bank and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as anditors have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)  We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiarics that have been consolidated
with the Bank's financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the
purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

{¢)  The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any
qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the member of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of
the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to
any other person for the content of this report.

f Py Gﬂ\(ﬁr’m W
PricewaterhouseCoopers Soo H oon Yean

{No. AF: 1146) (No. 2682/10¢11 (T1)
Charntered Accountants Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur

8§ September 2010
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